Attachment III – Questions and Answers from the Draft RFP

1. Question: Draft RFP Section C.2.1, Systems Analysis (final RFP cite is 2.1), and Section C.1.0 “Access to Space” (final RFP cite is 1.0), indicates that this effort is open to all architectures, not limited to hypersonic vehicles.  Is this correct?  
Answer:  Yes, it is open to all architectures for future generation space transportation systems (rocket and air breathing).

2. Question: Draft RFP Section C.2.1 Systems Analysis- Does the “portfolios of advanced technologies” imply customer-identified technologies from previous government/ industry data base and additional related technologies identified by the contractor(s) during the Hypersonic Task order program? When will the customer provided portfolios be available?
Answer:  The answer to the first sentence is Yes.  Any customer-provided portfolio will be provided at task order issuance.

3. Question: Draft RFP Section C.2.2.9 Integration with Potential Carrier Vehicles- Will the customer define some of the potential carrier vehicles or does the contractor have the responsibility to research/identify them?
Answer:  This will be specified in individual Task Orders.  The task order may identify a specific carrier vehicle or the task order may require the contractor to research and identify them.

4. Question: Draft RFP Section C2.3 Dual-mode ramjet-scramjet propulsion technology development (final RFP cite is 3.0) - The increase in performance margin, weight margin and operational margin is against what baseline?  
Answer:  The increase will be measured against present state of the art, as represented by NASP, X-43A, HyTech, ISTAR and other projects.

5. Question: Draft RFP Section L.5.B (final RFP cite is L.5.C), Subfactor 1 Understanding the Requirements Paragraph (1) Systems Analysis and Section M.3A.1(1)- The first sentence states :Describe your approach for performing a complete and integrated systems analysis of a hypersonic vehicle”/  Are other (rocket-based and/or hypersonic first stage and rocket second stage) launch systems acceptable?
Answer:  Yes.  The word “hypersonic” has been changed to “launch” in the final RFP.

6. Question: Must companies be capable to perform the three works areas stipulated in Sections C.2.1 Systems Analysis, C.2.2 Hypersonic Flight Vehicle Demonstrators, and C.2.3 Dual-mode ramjet-scramjet propulsion technology development, or can a company propose on just one of these three main work areas, or propose for just one of the tasks such as C.2.1.1 or propose for just one of the sub-tasks such as C.2.3.1.1 
Answer:  An offeror must propose on Discipline Area A or Discipline Area B, or both.  See L.2 of the final RFP.  An offeror may not propose on part of a Discipline Area. 

7. Question: Since the award could be multiple, can an offeror, which brings only part of the technical capabilities to the table, propose?  Would it be considered non-responsive if all areas are not covered?
Answer:  See answer to 6 above.

8. Question: Draft RFP Section 4.0-Vehicle/Airframe/ Propulsion System cost and schedule estimates- Will these estimates be kept proprietary if so marked?
Answer:   Draft RFP Section 4.0 (final RFP cite is Section 5.0) lists potential task order deliverables.  These deliverables will routinely be expected to be delivered without restrictions (i.e., with unlimited rights).  These deliverables will typically not include a contractor’s proposed rates and costs.   In those cases on individual task orders where the Government requires delivery of proprietary data, the Alternate II to the Rights in Data General clause will be cited for that Task Order (See Section I, FAR 52.227-14)

9. Question: If an SDB participates as a subcontractor, would the price evaluation adjustment be applicable to the portion of the cost proposed by the SDB? 

Answer:   No, the price evaluation adjustment applies only to SDB prime contractors.  However, an offeror may receive credit for SDB subcontractors’ participation in the performance of the contract in the NAICS Industry Subsectors as determined by the Department of Commerce.  See FAR 19.12 and the final RFP, Mission Suitability Subfactor 5, L.5.C.5. 

10. Question: Is there a uniform definition for the labor categories described in the draft RFP, such as a minimum education level and minimum experience?
Answer:  These are provided in  L.5.D in the final RFP.

11. Question: Draft RFP Page 2, Section B.2- The total maximum of $40M is the total of all multiple award contracts.  What will be the basis of allocation of this amount among the awarded contracts?
Answer:  Note that this amount has been increased to $75M in the final RFP.  It is anticipated that multiple contracts will be awarded as a result of this solicitation and that for most task orders in excess of $2,500, each awardee will be given a fair opportunity to be considered for each order in accordance with FAR 16.505.  Therefore, the allocation of this amount among the awarded contracts will be the result of the “fair opportunity” process.

12. Question: Draft RFP Page 3, Section C.1.0-  It is stated in the last sentence of the second paragraph that this contract may be used to support …all NASA centers and other agencies which require work within scope of this section C.  Will the task order for such work be used by the Langley Center Contracting Officer, or is it intended that other centers and agencies will be authorized to issue orders as well?
Answer:  All task orders will be issued by the Langley Contracting Officer.

13. Question: Draft RFP Page 6, Section C.3.1- What will be the mechanism for working with the other contractors? e.g. Associate Contractor Agreements (ACAs)
Answer:    See the final RFP, H.12.   Also carefully review Mission Suitability Subfactor 3, Management, which requires the offeror to describe proposed interfaces, methods for insuring total system integration when other contractors are providing critical components of a design, and risks associated with communication issues when integrating systems with other contractors.

14. Question: Draft RFP Page 10, Section G.2- Will Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) be allowed?

Answer:  See Section I, FAR clause 52.232-34, Payment by Electronic Funds Transfer – Other than Central Contractor Registration.

15. Question: Draft RFP Page 14, Section H.7 and page 51, section L.5.B.3.B.(1) and page 52, Section L.5.B.5- Will a Comprehensive Subcontracting Plan be acceptable in lieu of program plans and targets?
Answer:   Subfactor 3, Management, requires the submission of a comprehensive plan, including proposed goals.  Please provide the information required by L.5.C.3(c) (1) as part of your response to Subfactor 3, Management.   In addition, please provide the information required by L.5.C.5.  Note that two separate responses are required.   Also See L.6.

16. Question: Draft RFP Section H.13 Schedule of Rates for Task Orders- We recommend that the rate schedule reflect contractor “Estimated Rates per Contract Year” in lieu of “Not to Exceed” rates.  Stipulating “Not to Exceed” rates may not result in accurate cost proposal should the contractor rate structure change within the 5 year period.  We recommend that this schedule reflect estimated rates and proposed rated to be provided on a task order by task order basis.
Question: Draft RFP Section H.13 “Schedule of Rates for Task Orders”.  Of the NTE skill classification rates requested, will each NTE rate classification be negotiated for each task order?  If not, what is the purpose of the NTE rate?
Question: Draft RFP Section H.13 Schedule of Rates for task orders contains a table for Not To Exceed Rates per Contract Year.  Inasmuch as the resultant contract is anticipated to be a Cost plus Fixed Fee contract, per B.3 (page 2) this requirement should be deleted.
Question:  Delete Draft RFP Section H.13 Schedule of Rate by Year: Or in the alternative the contractor requests that the government allows for negotiation of rates at the beginning of each year.
Answer:  H.13, Schedule or Rates for Task Orders, has been deleted from the final RFP.  The contractor will be required to propose on task orders based on current rates at the time of task issuance.

17. Question: Draft RFP Section L.5.3 Proposal page limitation- Under para (b), is there any restriction on line spacing and font type? (None identified in the paragraph).
Answer:  Proposals may be single spaced.  The font used should be not smaller than 12 point type.   See L.5.B.4 in final RFP.

18. Question: Draft RFP Section e. Subfactor 5- Small Disadvantaged Business (SDB) Participation- Is this plan included in the page count limitations of Volume I, Technical Proposal?
Answer:  Yes

19. Question: Draft RFP Cost Realism- Is a justification of the Cost Realism required in the Technical Proposal and will the text be excluded from the page limitations?
Answer:   No cost realism justification is required from the offeror. The Government will evaluate and assess the proposed costs to determine cost realism.

20. Question: Draft RFP Section H.4 (LIMITED) RELEASE OF CONTRACTOR CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS INFORMATION (CBI) (LaRC 52.204-104) (JAN 2002)- Will the non-disclosure agreements signed by the assisting contractor or subcontractor, and their individual employees be signed directly with the prime contractor?
Question: Draft RFP Section H.4 (Limited) Release of Contractor Confidential Business Information (CBI) (LaRC 52.204-104) (JAN 2002)- It is requested that this requirement be struck from the RFP.
Answer:   As NASA uses support service contractors to perform such services as contract closeout, this clause is being used NASA wide and will not be deleted.  Because of the large number of companies whose data is involved, it will be impractical for the nondisclosures to be signed directly with the primes.   

21. Question: Draft RFP Section L.5 PROPOSAL PREPARATION AND SUBMISSION—SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS, Cost Volume, C.f(4)- Is the 67,000 direct labor hours to be priced EACH of the five years?
Answer:  The final RFP has specified revised annual hours for each Discipline Area.   See L.5.D.

22. Question: The Government requires 10 copies of the proposal.  Would the government accept electronic submittal of proposal?
Answer:  No.

23. Question: Under Draft RFP Section 3.0, Paragraph 3.1- Will the Government provide the contractor a list of companies and POC, address and telephone number the contractor is to work with?

Answer:    See H. 12.  These clauses will be tailored for and included in specific task orders, identifying specific contractors.  

24. Question: Under Draft RFP Section D.2 Packaging and Marking- Will the Government consider allowing the resulting items to be marked and packed in accordance with Commercial practices?

Answer:   Yes.  D.2 has been revised.  However, note that specific Task Orders may identify special packing and marking requirements.

25. Question: Delete Draft RFP Section 52.246-11 Higher Level Contract Quality Requirements and the ANSI/ISO/ASQC Q ISO9001.

Answer:  Langley considers this to be an important requirement and therefore will not delete it.

26. Question: Will the Government accept 52.227-12 the Patent long form in lieu of the short form called out in Draft RFP Section G.3?

Answer:   No, the resulting contract(s) will include either FAR 52.227-11 (as modified by the NFS) or NFS 1852.227-70, depending on the type of contractor.  See NFS 1852.227-84.

27.  Question: Delete 1852.235-71 Key Personnel and Facilities.  The contractor will provide the best-qualified personnel for the effort, yet it may be necessary to rotate personnel within the company.

Answer:   Langley intends to cite only the Program Manager in this Section I clause.  (This change has been made in the final RFP).  NFS 1852.235-71 permits personnel replacement, with the Government’s consent.

28. Question: Delete 1852.235-74 Additional Report of Work- Research and Development.  It is recommended that this clause be deleted or that the Government agree to recognize any reproduction of extra costs required to provide the reports.

Answer:  This clause has been deleted in the final RFP.  Note that Monthly Technical Progress Reports are required in Exhibit A.

29. Question:  Delete FAR 52.230-3 Disclosure and Consistency of Cost Accounting Practices (APR 1998).  Not applicable to the contractor, which is subject to full CAS coverage.

Answer:   The RFP includes both the Cost Accounting Standards clause (52.230-2) and the Disclosure and Consistency of Cost Accounting Practices (52.230-3).   One of these clauses will be deleted in each resulting contract, depending on the contractor’s certification in K.15.

30. Question: The Draft RFP calls for several plans to be submitted with the proposal: namely a Small Business Subcontracting Plan, an ISO 9001 Quality Manual, Quality Plan, quality compliance plan, and a Health and Safety Plan.  Furthermore the Volume I is restricted to 60 double-spaced, 12 point print pages.  Is the page count intended to preclude these plans and manuals?  

Answer:  Note that the page limitations have been changed and specified for each Discipline Area in the final RFP.  See L.5.B., which also lists those items which are excluded from the page limitation.  The Small Business Subcontracting Plan, the ISO 9001 Compliance Documentation, and the Safety and Health Plan are excluded from the page count for Volume I.   Note that there is no requirement for double spacing, as your question stated. 

31. Question:  Draft RFP Section G.3 “Designation of New Technology Representative and Patent Representative” (NASA 1852.22-72)- Does NASA agree to patent rights retention by the contractor?

Answer:   See L.1, Part II, NFS Provision 1852.227-84, Patent Rights Clauses.  This solicitation includes the Patent Rights clause applicable to small business and nonprofit organizations, as well as the clause applicable to large businesses.  The appropriate clause will be included in the final contract, depending on the status of the contractor.

32. Question: Draft RFP Section H.11 & 12 “Advance Agreement on Bid and Proposal Costs” and “Task Ordering Procedures”- Why are contractor bid and proposal costs not reimbursable?
Answer:   See H.16 of the final RFP.  The costs of preparing proposals for individual task orders under this contract will not be an allowable direct charge to the contract.  However, these costs may be an allowable cost to the normal bid and proposal indirect costs in accordance with FAR 31.205-18.

33. Question: Draft RFP I.1 Clause 1852.242-76 Modified Cost Performance Report- Considering the estimated contract value of the Draft RFP, could a 533 report be required in lieu of a Cost Performance Report?
Answer:   NFS Clause 1852.242-76 has been deleted from the final RFP.

34. Question: Draft RFP Exhibit A, Section B, paragraph 2.c.- Can the submittal date be the 20th operating day rather than the 15th?
Answer:  No, our Office of the Comptroller requires these reports to be submitted by the 15th operating day following the close of the contractor’s accounting period.

35. Question: Draft RFP Section L.5 requests that Volume III, Past Performance, be submitted by 4 p.m. local time on June 27, 2003. Is this a firm date, or a function of the RFQ release date?
Answer:   See the final RFP, L.5.B.2 for the requested submittal date for Volume III. 

36. Question: Draft RFP Section L.5 C. Business Proposal Volume II- What is the purpose of hour estimates, material estimates ($110K), travel estimates ($125K) per Task Order? Are they targets/goals, not to exceed values?
Answer:  FAR 15.404-1 and NFS 1815.305 require a cost realism and price reasonableness analysis.  To fairly accomplish this in an IDIQ contract environment, the Government has provided estimates of hours, materials, and travel for use only in proposal preparation. These are not targets, goals, or “not to exceed” values for the resulting contracts and will be used only in the analysis to establish cost realism and price reasonableness for selection purposes.  See L.5 of final RFP.  Since the contracts resulting from the RFP will be IDIQ, costs will be dependent on the actual Task Orders issued.

37. Question: Draft RFP Section L.5 D Past Performance Volume III, D.- Who supplies past performance questionnaires to three selected representatives on past contracts, NASA LaRC or the offeror?
Answer:     The offeror supplies questionnaires to three selected customers.  See L.5.E.4 of the final RFP.

38. Question:  May a foreign firm propose on this procurement?

Answer:  There are major obstacles to a foreign firm proposing on this procurement.  First, the final RFP will state that the procurement is subject to the NASA Policy and Guidelines for the Use of Foreign Technology in the Reusable Launch Vehicle Program, which states in part:  “"Federal funds may be used for manufacture or acquisition of existing foreign components or technology, but may not be used for foreign-based research on or development of RLV technology, unless specifically exempted by the NASA Administrator."  Furthermore, since the contract will involve ITAR restricted data, all offerors shall be registered with the Department of State, Directorate of Defense Trade Controls, on the date specified for receipt of offers in order to be determined responsible.  In addition, the contract will require a security clearance of Secret.  
